
1 
 

EDGERTON PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR SESSION 

Edgerton City Hall 
June 12, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
   

 
1. Call Meeting to Order  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call  
 
4. CONSENT  AGENDA 
 (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Planning 

Commissioner requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action) 
 

MINUTES 
A. Consideration of Minutes for Regular Session of May 8, 2018 

 
TEMPORARY USES, TU2018-04 – INLAND PORT XXXI, 31800 W. 196th 

B. Consideration of a temporary use request, TU2018-04, requesting approval of 
temporary sanitary facilities for property located at 31800 W. 196th Street (Inland Port 
XXXI).  Applicant: NorthPoint Development   
 

TEMPORARY USES, TU2018-05 – INLAND PORT XL, 31301 W. 181st 
C. Consideration of a temporary use request, TU2018-05, requesting approval for con-

struction of temporary parking space for property located at 31301 W. 181st (Inland 
Port XL).  Applicant: ColdPoint Logistics 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – PRELIMINARY PLAT, LOGISTICS PARK KANSAS CITY-
SOUTHWEST, PP2018-04 

A. Consideration of opening a public hearing in regards to application, PP2018-04, 
requesting approval of a preliminary plat for Logistics Park Kansas City – 
Southwest, located in the northeast corner of 199th Street and Four Corners Road, 
consisting of two (2) lots and four (4) tracts, containing approximately 119.425 
acres, more or less.  Applicant: Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC.  Engineer:  
Olsson Associates 

 
Actions requested: Open the public hearing, receive comments, and consider 
motion to close or continue the public hearing. 
 
Consider motion to approve, table or deny the preliminary plat. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN, LOGISTICS PARK KANSAS 
CITY SOUTHWEST (INLAND PORT 23 AND 24), PS2018-03 

B. Consideration of opening a public hearing in regards to an application, PS2018-03, 
requesting approval of a preliminary site plan for Logistics Park Kansas City 
Southwest (Inland Port 23 and 24), located in the northeast corner of 199th Street 
and Four Corners Road, consisting of two (2) lots and four (4) tracts, containing 
approximately 119.425 acres, more or less.  Applicant: Edgerton Land Holding 



2 
 

Company LLC  Engineer: Olsson Associates 
 
Actions requested: Open the public hearing, receive comments, and consider 
motion to close or continue the public hearing. 
 
Consider motion to approve, table or deny the preliminary site plan. 

 
FINAL SITE PLAN, FS2018-05, AMENDING FS2017- 01, 19400 ESSEX STREET 

C. Consideration of FS2018-05, pertaining to the amendment of FS2017-01, 
requesting installation of a Compressed Natural Gas Fueling Station for UPS, 
located at 19400 Essex Street.  Authorized Agent: TruStar Energy for ELHC XXI 
LLC, Engineer: Katahdin Environmental 

 
Action requested:  Consider motion to approve, table, or deny the request. 

 
 

6. Future Meeting –  July 10, 2018 
 
7.  Adjournment 



EDGERTON COMMUNITY BUILDING 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

REGULAR SESSION 
May 8, 2018 

 
 
The Edgerton Planning Commission met in regular session with Chair John Daley calling the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m.  

All present participated in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

The Roll Call was answered, indicating those present were:  Commissioners John Daley, Katee Smith, 
and Josh Beem.  Absent were Commissioners Andrew Merriman and Erik Erazo.  Also present were: 
City Administrator Beth Linn, Development Services Director Katy Crow, and Recording Officer Debra 
Gragg. 

The Recording Officer announced a quorum was present. 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2018-2019 
After brief discussion, the members nominated the following list of officers:  John Daley – Chair; Katee 
Smith – Vice-Chair; and Andrew Merriman – Secretary. 

Motion by Beem, seconded by Smith, to accept and approve the nominations for Planning Commission 
officers for 2018-2019.  The motion was approved, 3-0. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to approve the item as presented in the Consent Agenda.  Motion 
was approved, 3-0. 
 

MINUTES 
A. Minutes for the Regular Session of April 10, 2018 were considered and approved. 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING FOR NORTHEAST CORNER OF FOUR CORNERS ROAD AND 
199TH STREET, ZA2018-02 
The opening of a public hearing regarding rezoning application, ZA2018-02, pertaining to the rezoning 
of property from Johnson County RUR and UTILITY to City of Edgerton L-P (Logistics Park) located in 
the Northeast Corner of Four Corners Road and 199th Street, containing approximately 119.425 acres, 
more or less.  Applicant: NorthPoint Development LLC/Edgerton Land Holding Company LLC 
Management Engineer:  Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting 
 
The Development Services Director overviewed the history and reason for the rezoning request.  She 
indicated the majority of the property was annexed in March 2014 with a small remnant annexed earlier 
in 2018.  She noted the rezoning is request for future intermodal-related, logistics park development.  
She also noted the property is surrounded by Johnson County Parks and Recreation district, LPKC 
operations, low-density rural, single-family, and landscape nursery operations.  The project has 
frontage along Four Corners Road, Homestead Land and West 199th Street. 
 
Ms. Crow stated the applicant’s request is for L-P, Logistics Park and overviewed the proposed uses 
within the noted district.  She also noted staff reviewed the application in respect to the Unified 
Development Code, laws of Kansas and the “Golden Criteria.” 



Edgerton Planning Commission 
Regular Session 
May 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Ms. Crow stated due to proximity to the LPKC, BNSF railway intermodal facility and the interstate, the 
L-P zoning district is the most compatible, adding the Future Land Use Map contained in the 
Comprehensive Plan has the property designated as appropriate and acceptable for business 
park/industrial uses, adding this change is not considered extreme or rare in the development.  She 
noted the Site Plan review will help to mitigate impacts that might occur to the adjacent properties, 
which could include buffering, setbacks, stormwater management, and transition of uses.  
 
The Commissioners were informed the request is an effective use of the land due to the proximity of the 
BNSF Railway intermodal, LPKC and Interstate 35.  It was also noted the need for the community 
would be enhanced due to uses related to nearby facilities which allows for inland port for goods in 
transit, and by reducing truck traffic in area and allowing for more efficient use of the supply chain.  
 
Ms. Crow also noted the area continues to add intermodal development with major road improvements, 
adding the character of the area is changing from rural to industrial.  It was noted properties south of 
this area contain a mixture of unincorporated Johnson County which includes residential, vacant, and 
farm lands.  It was also noted property to east is beginning to develop with industrial and Logistics Park 
uses; and to the west is located Milldale Farms, regional park with flood plain areas which will generally 
remain undeveloped, providing for open space, wildlife, stream way buffers, hiking, biking and 
pedestrian uses.  The Development Services Director also noted the proposed zoning is compatible 
with the planned future uses of the surround property, which includes limitations on use for outside 
activities and storage of materials, noise, vibration, etc., with site plan reviews to provide potential 
mitigation of impacts to adjacent properties with attention to buffering, setbacks, stormwater 
management, and transition of uses. In addition, it was noted the existing zoning is not suitable for the 
proposed distribution warehouse and limited manufacturing industrial use for which the applicant is 
requesting, noting the L-P district is the most appropriate usage. 
 
The Commissioners were informed this property has remained vacant under the current zoning for at 
least 70 years.  They were also informed the proposed request is compatible with planned future uses 
of the surrounding property, specifically to the adjacent north and east adjacent to Waverly Road.  It 
was noted the property is surrounded by Four Corners Road, Homestead Lane and 199th Street.  They 
were informed staff is evaluating the capacity of 199th Street to determine if improvements to 
accommodate the anticipated development is needed.  It was stated that Homestead Lane and 
intersection at 199th Street has been improved to the standard which will accommodate industrial 
development.  They were informed the developer or the City will determine how other utilities will be 
added to accommodate the needs of the project.  The roadway network, which includes Homestead 
Lane and intersection at 199th Street, is improved to accommodate industrial traffic, staff is reviewing 
Four Corners Road and 199th Street to determine any needs necessary. 
 
Ms. Crow focused on the environmental impacts and informed the Planning Commission the City 
follows the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) guidelines, adding the 
requirements will be reviewed and addressed as part of the Site Plan review.   
 
Staff noted the uses allowed in the requested zoning has the potential to benefit the community in the 
positive by providing jobs, tax revenue and economic opportunities.  It was also stated that denial of 
this request would not significantly add to the public health, safety or welfare.  It was noted the 
Comprehensive plan has the area designated as appropriate for zoning and uses associated with 
business park and industrial zoning, adding staff believes the requested rezoning is compatible with the 
spirit and intent of future development as outlined in the Comprehensive Plan, Johnson County 
Southwest Area Plan and Future Land Use Map. Staff recommends approval with certain stipulations. 



Edgerton Planning Commission 
Regular Session 
May 8, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Chris Chancellor, representing ELHC, stated his concurrence with staff’s comments and 
recommendations. He stated the utilities are available to serve on the north side. 
 
Chair Daley opened the public hearing. 
 
James Cahill, 19901 Peppertree Lane, Edgerton, KS stated he was interested in the timeline of the 
project. 
 
Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to close the hearing.  Motion passed 3-0. 
 
City Administrator Beth Linn stated the preliminary plat and site plan will be considered at the next 
Planning Commission meeting and more information regarding the project will be known then. 
 
Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to approve the rezoning requested with the following stipulations: 
1.) All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met; 2.) All platting requirements of the City shall 
be met; 3.) All Site Plan application requirements of the City shall be met; and 4.) Prior to issuance of 
the building permits, the property shall have an approved Site Plan reviewed and approved by the City.  
The motion was approved, 3-0. 
 
Ms. Linn announced the rezoning request would be considered by the Edgerton City Council on May 
24, 2018. 
 
FUTURE MEETING 
The next meeting is scheduled for June 12, 2018. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Beem, seconded by Smith, to adjourn.  Motion was approved, 3-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Debra S. Gragg 
Recording Officer 
 



Temporary Construction Activities – Sanitary Facilities  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

Date: June 12, 2018 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
From: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
Re: Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Activities on property located at IP XXXI 

(31800 W. 196th Street) – Temporary Sanitary Facilities 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Article 9, Section 9.6E of the Unified Development Code of the City of Edgerton, Kansas states 
that the Planning Commission is authorized to review and approve the use of property during 
times of construction, reconstruction, or adaptation to permit temporary living quarters for 
construction personnel, offices, buildings for storage, outdoor storage, machinery yards, 
portable concrete or asphalt mixing plants, sanitary facilities, and similar uses subject to 
stipulations and the approval of staff. 

MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED 
On May 24, 2018, staff received a request from NorthPoint Development requesting approval 
for the temporary use of temporary sanitary facilities (port-a-lets) at IP XXXI while restrooms 
are being constructed in the north half of the building.  While the applicant is ready to begin 
construction of permanent facilities immediately, the opportunity to lease the space may occur 
before the restroom facilities are finished. The use of port-a-lets would allow the applicant to 
market the property for immediate occupancy. The applicant is requesting permission to utilize 
port-a-lets for a 120-day construction period. Two ADA compliant port-a-lets would be located 
outside with two handwashing stations located inside the building. 

The applicant has provided a site plan indicating placement of the port-a-lets on the building 
exterior and a letter from the property owner granting permission for this temporary 
construction activity on their site. The submitted site plan shows the proposed portalets 
located on the east side of the building at about midpoint.  

This type of operation is not specifically permitted in the Unified Development Code and is not 
typically permitted as part of the L-P, Logistics Park District.  Currently, the UDC only provides 
an allowance under Article 9.6E, which is for Temporary Construction Activities, and which 
would appear to be appropriate in this circumstance.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval for this use of the property located at IP XXXI (31800 W. 196th 
Street) for construction-related activities pursuant to Article 9, Section 9.6E of the Unified 
Development Code, by NorthPoint Development for temporary use of port-a-lets during 
construction subject to the following conditions: 

1. Portalets must be removed no later than October 12, 2018;
2. Site must be maintained in good condition;
3. All waste must be disposed of in accordance with all applicable regulations;



Temporary Construction Activities – Sanitary Facilities                                                      Page 2 of  2 

4. All signage shall be placed pursuant to applicable sign regulations in Chapter 1, Article 
12 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Edgerton; 

5. All vertical structures shall require a building permit pursuant to the Code of 
Regulations for Buildings and Construction, 2010 Edition of the City of Edgerton prior 
to being occupied; 

6. Contractors shall obtain all required permits pursuant to the Code of Regulations for 
Buildings and Construction, 2010 Edition or other applicable chapter of City Code; 

7. Contractors agree to address any issues that affect off-site properties or public rights-
of- way or easements within a reasonable amount of time; 

8. Maintain a valid City of Edgerton Business License; and 
9. Permission for temporary construction activities is granted for a period ending October 

12, 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

- Application request from NorthPoint 
- Site plan with location of port-a-lets marked 
- Permission from building owner 





B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

4k 2k

4k

2k2k2k

4k

BUILDING
UTILITY ROOM

(363sf)

TOTAL PREMISES AREA
±221,408 sf

221,621 sf (RENTABLE AVAILABLE)

TENANT AREA
±25,000 sf

OCCUPIED

PORTABLE TOILET
LOCATION

N:\01 PROJECTS\EDGERTON INTERMODAL (LPKC)\INLAND PORT 31\PROSPECTS\NORTH RESTROOM PLAN\IP-XXXI_RESTROOM PLAN.DWG : 6/5/2018 4:04:28 PM : agerber

Premises Plan - North Area  Inland Port, Building XXXI  Edgerton, KS  06.05.18  1:80
N





 

 
Temporary Construction Activities – Temporary Gravel Parking Lot                                     Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date: June 12, 2018 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
From: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
Re: Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Activities on property located at IP XL 

(31301 W. 181St Street) – Temporary Gravel Lot Parking Area 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Article 9, Section 9.6E of the Unified Development Code of the City of Edgerton, Kansas states 
that the Planning Commission is authorized to review and approve the use of property during 
times of construction, reconstruction, or adaptation to permit temporary living quarters for 
construction personnel, offices, buildings for storage, outdoor storage, machinery yards, 
portable concrete or asphalt mixing plants, sanitary facilities, and similar uses subject to 
stipulations and the approval of staff. 
 
MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED 
On May 22, 2018, staff received a request from ColdPoint Logistics requesting permission to 
temporarily use a gravel parking lot at ColdPoint Logistics (IP XL) during ongoing construction. 
With the onset of Phase 3 construction, the construction trailer was relocated to the west end 
of the property, leaving a gravel lot area. Current Phase 2 operations will relocate to Phase 3 
and as this transition is made, there are additional employees onsite for training purposes. In 
addition, Phase 2 facilities will need construction modifications for the accommodation of a 
new tenant. The applicant has requested permission to utilize the vacated gravel lot as an 
overflow parking area for these additional employees and construction personnel until 
November 6, 2018. 
 
Included in the attachments are the applicant’s request letter, a site plan of where the gravel 
lot is located, and a letter granting permission from the owner to allow this activity on their 
property.  
 
This type of operation is not specifically permitted in the Unified Development Code and is not 
typically permitted as part of the L-P, Logistics Park District.  Currently, the UDC only provides 
an allowance under Article 9.6E, which is for Temporary Construction Activities, and which 
would appear to be appropriate in this circumstance.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval for this use of the property located at 31301 W. 181st Street 
(ColdPoint - IP XL) for construction-related activities pursuant to Article 9, Section 9.6E of the 
Unified Development Code - use of a temporary gravel parking area during construction 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Gravel lot must be removed no later than November 6, 2018; 
2. When vacated, the site of the gravel lot must be returned to a grassy area; 
3. During temporary use, site must be maintained in good condition; 
4. All waste must be disposed of in accordance with all applicable regulations; 



 
Temporary Construction Activities – Temporary Gravel Parking Lot                                     Page 2 of 2 
 

 

5. All signage shall be placed pursuant to applicable sign regulations in Chapter 1, Article 
12 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Edgerton; 

6. All vertical structures shall require a building permit pursuant to the Code of 
Regulations for Buildings and Construction, 2010 Edition of the City of Edgerton prior 
to being occupied; 

7. Contractors shall obtain all required permits pursuant to the Code of Regulations for 
Buildings and Construction, 2010 Edition or other applicable chapter of City Code; 

8. Contractors agree to address any issues that affect off-site properties or public rights-
of- way or easements within a reasonable amount of time; 

9. Maintain a valid City of Edgerton Business License; and 
10. Permission for temporary construction activities is granted for a period ending 

November 6, 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

- Request letter from ColdPoint Logistics 
- Site Plan with location of gravel lot clearly marked 
- Permission letter from property owner, Cold Point Logistics 









 

PP-2018-04 Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                           Page 1 
 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
June 12, 2018 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr:  Katy Crow, Community Development Director 
Re: PP-2018-04 Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest, located on the 

northeast corner of 199th Street and Four Corners Road.  
  
 
APPLICATION INFORMATION 
 
Applicant:  
 Chris Chancellor, as agent of property owner 
 Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC  
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
 
Property Owner: Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC  
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
 
Requested Action:  Preliminary Plat approval.  
 
Legal Description: North ½ of the SE Quarter, and the SW Quarter of 

the SE Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 and Range 
22. See attached exhibit. 

 
Site Address/Location: On the north side of 199th Street between Four 

Corners Road and Homestead Lane. 
 
Existing Zoning and Land Uses: Zoned L-P (Logistics Park District) & undeveloped 
 
Existing Improvements: none   
 
Site Size: Approximately 119 acres. 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The current request is for preliminary plat approval (Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest) so 
the existing parcels can be platted into two (2) lots and four (4) tracts. The south side of Lot 1 
would have frontage along 199th Street and the east side would have frontage along Four 
Corners Road. Lot 2 has frontage on, but no access to, Homestead Lane. Access would be 
provided by the extension of Essex Street at the north end of the site, south to 199th Street.  
 



PP-2018-04 Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                          Page 2 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 
a. Access to the property and development will be from 199th Street and future Essex 

Street via private drives.  
a. 199th Street  

i. Lot 1 would have frontage along the north side of 199th Street and the 
east side of Four Corners Road 

ii. Lot 1 would have access to 199th Street via a private drive and future 
Essex Street.   

iii. Lot 2 would not have direct access to 191st Street, but would gain 
access via Essex Street through private drives.  

b. Homestead Lane 
i. No access to Homestead Lane is sought.  

c. Essex Street 
i. Future Essex Street would be constructed and extended from the 

northern property line south to 199th Street.   
d. Four Corners Road. 

i. No access to Four Corners Road is sought. 
b. Utilities and service providers. 

a. Johnson County Rural Water District #7. 
b. Sanitary Sewer - City of Edgerton. 
c. Storm Sewer – City of Edgerton. 
d. Electrical Service - Kansas City Power & Light. 
e. Gas Service – Kansas Gas Service. 
f. Telephone & Cable – Century Link.  

c. Police is provided by the city of Edgerton through the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office. 
d. Fire protection is provided by Johnson County Fire District #1. 
e. Located within the Bull Creek watershed. 

 
PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW 
Staff has reviewed the Preliminary Plat submittal for compliance with the requirements in 
Section 13.3 of Article 13 of the Edgerton UDC. Review comments are listed below. 
 
Content of Preliminary Plat 

1. Proposed location of streets, sidewalks, sanitary sewers, storm water sewers, water 
mains, and fire hydrants. Plat must show that the water distribution system and the 
sanitary sewer collection system touch upon each lot and/or tract, or in an easement 
appurtenant to each lot and/or tract. Staff is currently evaluating the curve design for 
Essex Street along with the drive entrances. The proposed driveways should meet the 
City of Edgerton width standards. The tangent section at the south end of Essex Street 
at the intersection of 199th Street should be evaluated for length. As a public road, 
Essex Street must have a cross section that matches previously installed roadway. 
Improvement plans should include construction of a sidewalk. The separation between 
the west entrance onto 199th Street and Four Corners Road should be labeled and at a 
minimum the distance should be 150’ and greater if possible. Improvements to 
199th Street are being evaluated by staff and w ill be addressed at the Final 
P lat and Final P lan review  stages.  

2. A copy of the proposed restrictive covenants. I f needed, this item w ill be 
addressed at Final P lat stage. 



PP-2018-04 Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                          Page 3 
 

 
General Design Standards 

1. All lots must front on a public right-of-way. When a subdivision is located along arterial 
roads adequate buffers must be maintained between the right-of-way and the building 
line. The construction of Essex Street, as access to 199th Street for Lot 2 is being 
provided by that roadway. Street design is being evaluated by staff and w ill be 
addressed at the Final P lat and Final P lan review  stages. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City 
Southwest, subject to compliance with the following stipulations: 

1. All Preliminary Plat requirements of the City listed above shall be met or addressed. 
2. Preliminary plat be approved for a one-year period and shall be extended for an 

additional year upon the approval of a final plat for the same parcel of land or any part 
thereof. If a final plat is not approved for a portion or all of the land covered under the 
preliminary plat within one year, the preliminary plat shall be ruled null and void. The 
Planning Commission upon submittal and approval of a written request may grant a 
one-year extension on the approval of the preliminary plat. 

3. All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

- Application PP2018-04 
- Preliminary Plat for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest 

 
 
  



















 

PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                            Page 1 
 

 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
June 12, 2018 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
Re: Application PS-2018-03 for Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest, 

located on the northeast corner of 199th and Four Corners Road. 
 
APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: Chris Chancellor, as agent of property owner 
 Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC  
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
 
Property Owner: Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC 
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
 
Requested Action: Preliminary Development/Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas 

City South Southwest. 
 
Legal Description: North ½ of the SE Quarter, and the SW Quarter of the SE 

Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 and Range 22, City of 
Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas. 

 
Site Address/Location: On the northeast corner of 199th and Four Corners Road. 
 
Existing Land Use:   vacant 
 
Existing Zoning and Uses: Zoned L-P (Logistics Park District); current use farming & 

vacant 
 
Existing Improvements:  none 
 
Site Size:    Lot 1 –  57.43 acres. 
 Lot 2 –  26.19 acres.  

Tract A – 3.45 acres  
Tract B – 4.99 acres. 
Tract C – 1.26 acres 
Tract D – 15.89 acres.  
 
Total – 109.21 acres 

 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         2 

Background Information 
The current Preliminary Site Plan depicts two (2) warehouse buildings on two (2) lots with associated 
parking and stormwater detention facilities. The proposed building sizes are as follows; Building 1 – 
1,168,354 SQFT and Building 2 – 478,007 SQFT, for a total of 1,646,361 SQFT. The plan identifies 
tracts A, B, C & D which are to be utilized as part of the stormwater system. The conceptual building 
floor plans include conceptual building elevations. No lighting plans have been provided by the 
applicant. 
   
The Preliminary Site Plan sheets include general information about the development including items 
such as overall layout, access (sight distance considerations), circulation and landscape plans.  
Additional, more detailed information, shall be submitted as part of the Final Site Plan.  Information 
submitted is sufficient for the Preliminary Site Plan review and approval.   
 
Subject Property 

 
 
Infrastructure and Services: 

1. Access to the property and development will be from 199th Street on the south and Essex 
Street on the north. 

2. Utilities and service providers. 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         3 

a. Water - Johnson County Water District #7 
b. Sanitary Sewer - City of Edgerton 
c. Electrical Service - Kansas City Power & Light 
d. Gas Service – Kansas Gas Service 
e. Police service is provided by the city of Edgerton through the Johnson County 

Sheriff’s Office. 
f. Fire protection is provided by Johnson County Fire District #1. 

3. Development proposal is located within the Bull Creek watershed, Marais De Cygnes river 
basin. 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Staff has reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan submittal. The application is reviewed for compliance 
with Section 10.1 of Article 10 for Site Plan requirements. It is also reviewed for compliance with 
Section 5.2 Logistics Park (L-P) District regulations. The combined details of that review are listed 
below. 
 
Article 10 
Section 10.1 - Site Plan requirements 
1. Sheet C202 thru C208. 

a) A site map with the following features: 
i. Parking areas, paths, walks with sizes and surfaces material specifications. The 

internal pedestrian system needs to connect with all vehicular parking lots. 
Sidewalks along Essex Street, Homestead Lane and 199th Street will need to be 
identified and connected to the internal pedestrian system. Pedestrian 
connections w ill be considered as part of the overall site infrastructure 
plan and w ill be reviewed as part of the Final Site Plan review .  

ii. Exterior lighting specifications. Applicant agrees to submit details, locations 
and photometric plan at Final Site Plan submission. 

iii. Site entrance and connections to streets.  Staff is currently evaluating the curve 
design for Essex Street along with the drive entrances. The proposed driveways 
should meet the City of Edgerton width standards. The tangent section at the 
south end of Essex Street at the intersection of 199th Street should be evaluated 
for length. As a public road, Essex Street must have a cross section that matches 
previously installed roadway. Improvement plans should include construction of a 
sidewalk. The separation between the west entrance onto 199th Street and Four 
Corners Road should be labeled and at a minimum the distance should be 150’ 
and greater if possible. Improvements to 199th Street are being evaluated 
by staff and w ill be addressed as part of the Final P lat and Final P lan 
review . 

iv. Connection point for utilities. Upon submission of Final Site Plan, public 
improvement plans for the proposed sanitary sewer line are required. 
The plans should be submitted to the City for review  and once all 
comments have been addressed the City w ill submit to KDHE for 
approval. Applicant agrees to address in Final Site Plan.   

b) A sketch of the entry sign, and all other free-standing, façade, and building signs to be used 
on the premises. No signage was submitted with the application. Proposed signage shall 
receive separate approval according to the provisions of the Uniform Development Code. 
Applicant acknow ledges and w ill submit signage application as required by 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         4 

Articles 5 and 12 of Edgerton’s UDC. 
c) Features to facilitate handicapped access. Accessible parking spaces and access areas are 

shown on the plan. The grade of the driveway aprons should be constructed so that the 
cross slope where the future sidewalk crosses shall not exceed 2%.  Applicant 
acknow ledges and agrees that these spaces shall not exceed 2%  slope in any 
direction and that the driveway cross slope w ill not exceed 2% .  

 
Section 5.2 Logistics Park (L-P) District regulations  
DESIGN GUIDELINES: 
1. Buildings should be oriented so that the front or side of the building faces the public street 

frontage of the property. The City may consider an exception to orient a rear elevation towards a 
public street for unique situations due to the configuration of the lot. The applicant has 
submitted building elevations for LPKC Southwest Lots 1 & 2. Current orientation of building 1 
will place dock areas and doors facing Four Corners Road and Essex Street rights-of-ways. 
Current orientation of building 2 will place dock areas and doors facing Essex Street and 
Homestead Lane. If the Planning Commission allows this orientation, then both Lot 1 and 2 will 
have docking doors facing public street rights-of-ways. See staff recommendation under 
Landscape Standards.  

2. The City may require that loading and service areas are screened from public view with 
landscaping, berming, facade walls, or fencing. Orientation of building 1 and 2 places building 
elevations, which contain dock doors, facing public street rights-of-ways (Four Corners Road, 
Essex Street and Homestead Lane. See staff recommendation under Landscape 
Standards.  

3. Pedestrian access within a development and adjacent public and private property shall be 
considered as a component to the design of an employment center. The vehicular parking lots 
must provide pedestrian access and connect to the future public sidewalk system along the 
northside of 199th Street. ‘[; 

4. ‘Pedestrian connections w ill be considered as part of the overall site infrastructure 
plan and w ill be reviewed as part of the Final Site Plan review . 
 

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS: 
1. Façade Guidelines 

a. Horizontal Articulation. Walls facing a public right-of-way or a residentially zoned property 
shall not extend for a distance greater than four (4) times the wall's height without 
having an off-set of ten percent (10%) of the wall's height (maximum of five (5) feet); 
the new plane shall extend for a distance equal to a minimum of twenty percent (20%) 
of the maximum length of the first plane.  The City may allow exceptions to this 
requirement upon review and approval of a typical facade elevation. Walls not facing a 
public right-of-way or a residentially zoned property and loading dock doors are exempt 
from the horizontal articulation requirement. 

i. Building 1 on Lot 1 
1. The south wall of Building 1 faces 199th Street right-of-way. The middle of 

the south elevation (wall) measures 315’. The height of the wall ranges 
between 42’-0” and 47’-0”. The maximum length of this wall without 
additional horizontal articulation is 178’-0”. The required horizontal off-sets 
calculated for this wall is 4.2’ and 4.7’. The off-sets provided are 5’ and 
10’, respectively. This means that the proposed building does not meet the 
horizontal articulation requirement due to the length of the middle section 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         5 

of this wall. The applicant has used color blocking to help create visual 
articulation. The applicant has provided right-of-way landscape buffering 
at this location for that portion adjacent to public right-of-ways. If the 
Planning Commission determines a variance/waiver from this requirement 
is appropriate, it is recommended they also determine if the right-of-way 
landscaping buffering proposed will provide adequate screening for that 
portion of 199th Street right-of-way exposed to the façade. 

ii. Building 2 on Lot 2 
1. The south wall of Building 2 faces rural zoned property with one single-

family residence home located upon it. The middle of the south elevation 
(wall) measures 265’. The height of the wall ranges between 42’-0” and 
47’-0”. The maximum length of this wall without additional horizontal 
articulation is 178’-0”. The required horizontal off-sets calculated for this 
wall is 4.2’ and 4.7’. The off-sets provided are 5’ and 10’, respectively. This 
means that the proposed building does not meet the horizontal articulation 
requirement due to the length of the middle section of this wall. The 
applicant has used color blocking to help create visual articulation. The 
applicant has provided right-of-way landscape buffering at this location for 
that portion adjacent to rural zoning and residential uses. If the Planning 
Commission determines a variance/waiver from this requirement is 
appropriate, it is recommended they also determine if the landscaping 
buffering proposed will provide adequate screening.   
  

b. Vertical Articulation. Walls facing a public right-of-way or a residentially zoned property 
shall not extend for a distance greater than four (4) times the height of the wall without 
changing height by a minimum of ten percent (10%) of the wall's height (maximum of 
five (5) feet).  The City may allow exceptions to this requirement upon review and 
approval of a typical façade elevation. Like the horizontal articulation requirement, walls 
not facing a public right-of-way or a residentially zoned property are exempt from this 
requirement.  However, walls with loading dock doors are still required to meet this 
standard.  Elevations for the building and façades has been provided.  

i. Building 1 
1. The minimum height change required is between 4.2 and 4.7 feet.  The 

maximum change in height shown on the south elevation (across the 
entire length of the building) is 5’-0” feet (42’-0” to 47’-0”).  While the 
articulation between the tops of the lowest and tallest walls exceed this 
requirement, the overall articulation does not comply as the 10% change 
in height is required to occur within each 178’-0” foot section of wall.  
While the elevations do not comply with this requirement more (while 
smaller) articulation is provided.  The vertical articulation being provided 
appears to be the same as that shown on previous projects.   
 

ii. Building 2 
1. The minimum height change required is between 4.3 and 4.8 feet.  The 

maximum change in height shown on the south elevation (across the 
entire length of the building) is 5’-0” feet (42’-0” to 47-0”).  While the 
articulation between the tops of the lowest and tallest walls exceed this 
requirement, the overall articulation does not comply as the 10% change 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         6 

in height is required to occur within each 178’-0” foot section of wall.  
While the elevations do not comply with this requirement more (while 
smaller) articulation is provided.  The vertical articulation being provided 
appears to be the same as that shown on previous projects.  The 
Planning Commission may decide to grant an exception to this 
requirement based upon the façade elevations to be provided at 
Final Site Plan review .    

 
c. Screening of Rooftop Equipment. For buildings within the L-P District, all rooftop mounted 

mechanical, air conditioning, electrical, and satellite dish equipment shall not be visible.  
Rooftop equipment shall be screened from ground and street level view with parapets or 
other architectural design features constructed of the same materials used on the 
exterior walls. Rooftop equipment is not shown on the proposed building elevations.  If 
rooftop equipment visible from the ground and street level is planned, parapets to 
conceal it from the ground and the streets shall be required prior to building permit 
approval. Applicant acknow ledges and w ill address in Final Site Plan 
submission. 

d. Color Palette. Earth tones, muted hues, and natural tones are permitted as structures’ 
basic colors. Brighter hues are permitted only as an accent color on building elements 
such as awnings, doors, and trim. A mixed color palette on a single building should be 
carefully selected so all colors harmonize with each other. Color blocking is used 
effectively in the elevations provided. Though staff has not done percentage calculations 
to evaluate strict compliance with the above chart, staff believes the uses of color on the 
building follow the pattern of previously approved buildings and are otherwise consistent 
with the identity of LPKC. Applicant acknow ledges and w ill address in Final Site 
Plan submission. 
 
Accent colors should be applied using the following guidelines: 
 

 Required Allowed 
1st Accent Color 10% 20% 
2nd Accent Color 0% 10% 
3rd Accent Color 0% 10% 

   *Percentage calculations shall utilize the entire façade area. 
 
OFF-STREET LOADING STANDARDS 
1. Temporary Outdoor Storage Regulations for Cargo Containers, Operational Trailers, and 

Tractors.  The L-P District requires that outdoor parking or storage spaces for cargo containers, 
operational trailers and tractors must be screened from view by either a masonry wall of a type 
and style complementary to the primary materials of the building, wrought iron, decorative 
metal, living plant material or a combination of these.  The height of the screening must be 
sufficient to block view of the equipment or vehicles from a public right-of-way.  Where a 
masonry wall is used to satisfy this requirement, foundation planting must be provided on the 
exterior face of the wall.  These spaces must be clearly demarcated solely for tractor and trailer 
storage. The west and east facades of both buildings face public rights-of-ways. These 
areas also contain trailer storage lots. Additional landscaping has been utilized to 
provide appropriate buffering and screening.   

 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         7 

PHOTOMETRICS: 
1. General. All lighting shall be designed in accordance with applicable Illuminating Engineering 

Society of North America (IESNA) practices as applied to specified applications within the L-P 
District.  Cut-off design is specified within the development. Applicant agrees that the 
photometric plan submitted as part of Final Site Plan submission w ill satisfy the 
above requirements.  
 

LANDSCAPE STANDARDS: 
1. Right-of-way Buffer Width Requirements. ROW buffer requirements for a 2 lane or 4 lane 

undivided road includes 1 tree per 50 LF of ROW within a 10-foot buffer width. Lots 1 & 2 abut 
Essex Street Street rights-of-way lines along their eastern and western property lines; Lot 1 
abuts Four Corners right-of-way along its western property line. Preliminary Site Plan 
complies.   

2. Perimeter Landscape Buffer Requirements.  The perimeter landscape requirements are based 
upon the use of the adjacent property.  The Preliminary Development/Site Plan under 
consideration is adjacent to road rights-of ways and rural/residential zoning and uses. Adjacent 
residential land uses require a Type 4 perimeter buffer landscaping which has been provided 
along the west and south borders of Lot 1.  The application seeks to utilize existing trees located 
along southeast of Lot 1 and along the south of Lot 2 to provide the required Type 4 landscape 
buffers.  Type 4 buffers are defined as requiring a 20’ buffer width and trees planted at 50’ 
spacing (100% within buffer) and bushes at 48” spacing (with 35% within buffer). Preliminary 
Site Plan complies. 

3. Buffer Composition Requirements. Deciduous trees and/or evergreen trees shall be a minimum 
of 2.5” caliper and 12’ in height at installation. Bushes shall be a minimum 24” high and planted 
on centers a maximum of 48” apart.  All plant material needs to comply with these minimum 
requirements. No single species of tree or plant material shall comprise more than 30% of the 
cumulative total of plantings on a site. Preliminary Site Plan complies. 

4. Screening from Residential Uses.  The eastern side of the southern half of Lot 1 and the 
southern side of Lot 2 of the Preliminary Site Plan abuts residential zoning and land uses. City 
regulations require Type 4 Landscaping Buffering, the landscape plan calls out the use of existing 
trees and vegetation to provide the required buffering. Preliminary Site Plan complies. 
Because the existing tree line is going to be used as part of the proposed landscape 
buffering, it should be protected during construction. Any trees that are lost, either 
during the construction process or subsequent to project completion, must be 
replaced so that landscape screening is not diminished. 

5. Dumpster screening. Trash enclosures or screening are not shown. Plans shall be updated to 
satisfy the dumpster screening requirements in Article 5.2 K 8. Applicant acknow ledges that 
final location of trash enclosures w ill be submitted w ith Final Site Plan to meet 
dumpster screening requirements in Article 5.2 K.8 of the Edgerton UDC.    

 
DIESEL EMISSION REQUIREMENTS: 
The following diesel emission requirements shall apply: 
1. Except for loading and unloading operations, heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle 

weight of over 14,001 pounds shall be restricted from idling on-site for no more than 5 minutes 
in any 60-minute period.  For loading and unloading operations, idling shall be restricted to no 
more than 30 minutes in any 60-minute period. 

2. One electrical hook-up shall be provided for “trucker plug-ins” equal to a minimum of one-third 
(1/3) of the total number of truck bays at the facility to eliminate excessive idling by heavy duty 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         8 

diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 pounds. Approval to use alternative 
technologies to eliminate excessive idling may be requested, but shall not be approved unless 
the applicant demonstrates that they are at least as effective as electrical hook-ups. Hook-ups 
must be indicated on site plan. 

3. Signs shall be posted by owner(s) of the facility at each vehicle entrance to the facility notifying 
drivers of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 pounds to turn 
off engines when not in use. 

4. The operation and idling of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 
pounds, including circulation, shall be restricted within 300 feet of any property zoned for or 
committed to residential use, or the owner/developer shall provide alternative measures 
including the possible installation of a wall or other mitigating measures to assure buffering of 
residences from heavy-duty truck operations, unless the owners of property located adjacent to 
said heavy duty diesel truck operations consent and agree, in writing to:  

a. Allow the location of heavy-duty diesel truck operations within 300 feet of their property 
zoned for and committed to residential use, and  

b. Restrict areas of their property located within 300 feet of adjacent trucking operations to 
only non-residential uses; 

5. Warehouse managers and employees shall be trained by the employer(s) or operator(s) of the 
facility to use efficient scheduling and load management to eliminate unnecessary operation, 
queuing, or idling of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 
pounds. 

6. Warehouse managers and employees shall be provided by the employer(s) or operator(s) of the 
facility with information about the possible effects of diesel emissions on their own health and 
the importance of being a good neighbor by minimizing idling and avoiding other potentially 
adverse impacts on adjacent or nearby residences; 

7. On-site services shall be made available to vehicle drivers to reduce idling.  These services may 
include restroom facilities, seating for drivers waiting for their cargo to be loaded or unloaded, 
and/or food/beverage vending machines. 

8. Any motorized equipment used within the proposed development should utilize clean technology 
propulsion and/or alternative fuels such as biodiesel, electricity, or propane; 

9. If fuel dispensing facilities are provided on-site, alternative clean fuels such as (but not limited 
to) bio-diesel blended fuel should be provided at these dispensing facilities. 

 
Other Comments 
 

1. Applicant acknowledges that a storm water management study and a SWPPP are required 
prior to Final Site Plan review, and both items will be submitted at a future date. 
  

RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the proposed Preliminary 
Development/Site Plan, with the following stipulations: 
 

1. The above recommendations are stipulated to as a part of approval and incorporated into the 
Preliminary Development/Site Plan document set.  

2. A Final Site Plan must be submitted and approved prior to commencement of uses and the 
property shall be developed in accordance with the approved Final Site Plan, Landscaping 
Plan, Photometric Plan, Stormwater Study and SWPPP as required by City approval of the 
submitted Preliminary Site Plan, as amended by these stipulations and approved by the City. 



PP-2018-03 Preliminary Site Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest                                         9 

3. All Preliminary Development/Site Plan requirements of the City listed above shall be met or 
addressed during Final Development/Site Plan submittal as identified above. 

4. No signage is proposed with this application. Signage proposed later shall receive separate 
approval according to the provisions of the UDC. 

5. All construction plans for any public infrastructure shall be prepared to City standards and 
approved by the City.

ATTACHMENTS 
- Application PS2018-03 
- Preliminary Plan for Logistics Park Kansas City Southwest 

  





vs. 9-9-11

DESIGN STANDARDS: Applicants within the Logistics Park (L-P) District should abide by the district regulations and design 
standards set forth in Section 5.2 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code. These regulations and design standards include, 
but are not limited to, building placement, architectural design standards, parking and loading, access management, photometrics, 
landscaping, signage and diesel emissions. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW:  The Edgerton Planning Commission meets in the City Hall on the second Tuesday of 
every month. The Planning Commission shall review the site plan to determine conformity with the design guidelines and other 
requirements included within the Edgerton Uniform Development Code. 

APPROVAL LIMITATIONS:  If the Final Site Plan is in conformance with an Approved Preliminary Site Plan, notice and publication 
of Planning Commission or City Council meetings is not required. 

CHECKLIST 

The following items shall be included on the site plan. All (FINAL) Site Plans must be submitted on superior quality paper in a  
24 x 36 inches format (or a format specified by the Zoning Administrator). The scale shall be a professionally acceptable standard 
suitable to the area of the proposed project.

Front or Cover Sheet

A scale, vicinity map showing the relationship of the site to surrounding neighborhoods, roads and other physical features.

A project title, zoning designation and project sponsor.

A street, lot or tract address of the project.

An index to contents and a data table which includes: 

 Acreage of the site and number of units per acre (if applicable)

 Gross square feet of the building(s) area

 Proposed use of each building

 Number of employees and the BOCA or Uniform Building Code or NEPA 101 Life Safety Code Occupancy Design Load

 Total number of parking places

Name of the architect, engineer, surveyor or draftsman.

Following certificates and signature blocks:

 CERTIFICATE:

 Received and placed on record this       day of    , 20            by
      
                           (Zoning Administrator).

 Approved by the Edgerton City Planning Commission this  day of                 , 20            by
      
                           (Chair of Planning Commission).

 I certify that I have reviewed this SITE PLAN and will comply with all specifications, changes, and amendments herein, and  
 that this instrument creates a legally enforceable obligation to build and develop in accordance with all final agreements.

 Applicant signature      Date

Site Plan Application
(Fee: $200 Plus $10 Per Acre)

404 East Nelson • Edgerton, KS 66021 • P: 913.893.6231 • F: 913.893.6232

Public Works: 816.893.6801 • EDGERTONKS.ORG



vs. 9-9-11

Sheet #2

A landscape plan drawn to scale, showing the site, building location, planting and seeding schedules, refuse and outdoor 
storage screening and boundary screening. All landscape features shall be shown in relation to sidewalks, paths, lawns, 
parking areas and drives.

A table entitled “Planting Schedule” which lists the common name, size and condition of all planting materials, together 
with a timetable for planting.

Sheet #3

A site map with the following features:

 Topography at reasonable intervals

 Exterior lot lines with any survey pins

 Location of buildings

 Parking areas, paths, walks with sizes and surfaces material specifications

 Exterior lighting specifications

 Site entrance and connections to streets

 Location of easements

 Connection point for utilities

A sketch of the entry sign, and all other free-standing, façade, and building signs to be used on the premises

Features to facilitate handicapped access

Profile and detail for roads (if required)

Sheet #4

Scale drawing of building floor plans

Dimensions and use of rooms and areas

Dimensions of entrances/exits and corridors

Interior specifications for handicapped accessibility as required by ANSI 117.1 and this ordinance

Sheet #5 (if requested)

Scale drawings of all building elevations

Roof pitch and materials

Siding type and materials, including facie

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:  Depending upon circumstances (especially buildings used for assembly), the Planning 
Commission may require additional sheets for mechanical and electrical and building materials specifications. The 
Planning Commission may also require additional information for hazardous material or other environmental impacts.

Site Plan Application
(Fee: $200 Plus $10 Per Acre)

404 East Nelson • Edgerton, KS 66021 • P: 913.893.6231 • F: 913.893.6232

Public Works: 816.893.6801 • EDGERTONKS.ORG



                          LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 15, RANGE 22 IN THE CITY OF
EDGERTON, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, BEING
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 34
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 2633.20 FEET
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST
QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 09
SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1315.72 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 43 SECONDS
WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1317.46 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 37 SECONDS
EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF
1316.95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 29
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A
DISTANCE OF 1317.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 02
DEGREES 09 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF
2635.26 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS:
5,202,152 SQUARE FEET OR 119.425 ACRES MORE OR
LESS. SUBJECT TO THAT PART TAKEN AND USED FOR
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY.













0
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
8



0
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
8



0
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
8



62
0'

-0
"

60
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

52'-0"

5'
-0

"

15'-0"

5'
-0

"
50

'-0
"

Spec XXIII
1,168,354 sf

52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"
1902'-0"

52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

60
'-0

"

60
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

60
'-0

"

62
0'

-0
"

5'
-0

"

52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"
1902'-0"

4
A1.23

52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0"

52'-0" 52'-0"

52'-0"

52'-0"

52'-0"

52'-0"

52'-0"

5
A1.23

52'-0"

3
A1.23

1
A1.23

52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"15'-0" 52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

52'-0" 52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

N
O

R
TH

52'-0"52'-0"

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

371 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"

15'-0"15'-0" 52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

M

A

L

K

J

I

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"

A

B

C

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

M

D

371 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36

52'-0" 52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

614 1035 5 12349 711 813 1218 151617192021222324252627282930313233343637

43
'-6

"

39
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

62 8 95 13 16 19 20

46
'-0

"

353 4 7 10 11 12 171514 181 3121 22 23 24 25 27 2826 29 30 32 33 34 36 37

Tenant Signage

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

B
E

YO
N

D
 G

R
ID

 'B
'

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

B
E

YO
N

D
 G

R
ID

 'J
'

50'-0"50'-0"50'-0"60'-0"5'-0"

43
'-6

"

50'-0"

45
'-0

"

50'-0" 50'-0"

42
'-6

"

Tenant Signage

46
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

47
'-0

"

45
'-0

"

46
'-0

"

A G KB C J

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)

P.J. L.P.P.J.P.J. P.J.

L.P.

P.J.P.J.P.J. P.J.

L.P.

D FE IH

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED
TO MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

P.J.P.J. P.J.P.J. P.J.

L.P.

P.J. P.J.

L.P.

L.P.P.J. P.J. P.J.

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

50'-0"

T.O.CONC.T.O.CONC.

L M

P.J.P.J. P.J.P.J.

F.F.E. F.F.E.

60'-0"50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0"

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

T.
 B

 &
 J

)

47
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

43
'-6

"

32
'-7

" 45
'-0

"

42
'-6

"

42
'-6

"

60'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 60'-0" 5'-0"5'-0"

Tenant Signage Tenant Signage

46
'-0

"

46
'-0

"

ACL HKM I FG E B

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED
TO MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)

P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. L.P. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

L.P.L.P.L.P.L.P.

L.P.P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

50'-0"

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

T.
 B

 &
 J

)

P.J. P.J.

50'-0"
DJ

50'-0"

P.J. P.J.

F.F.E.F.F.E.

T.O.CONC. T.O.CONC.

A1.23
OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1" = 20'-0"

OVERALL NORTH ELEVATION4

Scale: 1:60

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN2 N

Scale: 1:60

OVERALL EAST ELEVATION1

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

Scale: 1:60

OVERALL WEST ELEVATION3

Scale: 1" = 20'-0"

OVERALL SOUTH ELEVATION5

UTILITY
ROOM

DescriptionDateNo.

Issued For: Preliminary Development Plan

Date: 04.30.18

Project No. 2018-XX

Revisions:

CIVIL

LANDSCAPE

FOUNDATIONS

STRUCTURAL

PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

FIRE PROTECTION

CONTRACTOR

4825 NW 41st Street | Suite 500 | Riverside, MO 64150
816 | 888 | 7380

RENAISSANCE INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING

RENAISSANCE INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING

NorthPoint Development, LLC
Kansas Certificate of Authorization No. A-1099

XXXX   Edgerton, KS

Inland Port XXIII

Robert H. Waters III - Architect
Kansas License No. 4297

23

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER

BELOW SLAB

4.27.18



52
0'

-0
"

60
'-0

"

15'-0"
15'-0"

5'
-0

"

37'-0"

5'
-0

"

15'-0"

15'-0"

5'
-0

"

Spec XXIV
478,007 sf

37'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"

936'-0"

52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

60
'-0

"

60
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
60

'-0
"

52
0'

-0
"

5'
-0

"

37'-0" 37'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

936'-0"

5
A1.24

3
A1.24

1
A1.24

4
A1.24

SIM.

52'-0"

50
'-0

"

UTILITY ROOM

B
R

A
C

E
D

 F
R

A
M

E

52'-0"

52'-0"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"
50

'-0
"

50
'-0

"

K

1 192 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

1 192 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

K

A

J

I

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

J

I

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

KYNAR COATED MTL. CONDUCTOR
HEADS AND DOWNSPOUTS (TYP.)

43
'-6

"

39
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

39
'-0

"

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
CONDUCTOR HEADS AND
DOWNSPOUTS (TYP.)

GALV. AND PAINTED STL.
PIPE BOLLARDS (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

DOCK EQUIP: 45,OOO# MECHANICAL PIT
LEVELERS, DOCK BUMPERS, DOCK SEALS,
AND WHEEL CHOCKS (TYP. U.N.O.)

MANUAL PREFIN. INSUL. STL.
SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOCK
DOORS (TYP.)

GALVANIZED STEEL STAIRS,
GUARDRAILS AND HANDRAILS (TYP.)

BLOCK-OUT REINFORCING
FOR FUTURE OVERHEAD
DOCK DOOR (9'x10' TYP.)

CONC. STAIRS W/ GALVANIZED
HANDRAILS

F.F.E.

DOCK ELEV.

INSULATED CLERESTORY GLASS
IN THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)T.O.CONC.

3/8"x18"x36" GALV. STEEL BENT
PLATE D.S. PROTECTION (TYP.
- REF. WALL SECTIONS)

PIPE DOWNSPOUTS BELOW
GRADE PER CIVIL DWGS. (TYP.)

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED TO
MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

BLOCK-OUT REINFORCING FOR FUTURE
OVERHEAD DRIVE-IN DOOR (14'x16' TYP.)

P.J.

P.J.

PREFIN. INSUL STL. SECTIONAL
OVERHEAD DRIVE-IN DOOR W/
OPERATOR PER SCHEDULE (TYP.)

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
PER ELECT. DWGS.
PAINT TO MATCH WALL

GAS METER

LOUVER W/ SILL @ 12" A.F.F.
(PROVIDE 21"x42" ROUGH OPENING)

FIRE DEPARTMENT
CONNECTION
KNOX BOX

43
'-6

"

41
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

37'-0" 15'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"

41
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

46
'-0

"

46
'-0

"

52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"37'-0"15'-0"

4'
-0

"

39
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

F.F.E.

T.O.CONC.

119 23456789101112131415161718

P.J.P.J.

L.P.L.P. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.L.P. L.P.

P.J. P.J. P.J.

P.J. P.J.

43
'-6

"

39
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

41
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

37'-0"15'-0"

43
'-6

"

39
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

41
'-0

" (
TY

P
.)

4'
-0

"

46
'-0

"

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED TO
MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

DOCK ELEV.

KYNAR COATED MTL. CONDUCTOR
HEADS AND DOWNSPOUTS (TYP.)

GALV. AND PAINTED STL.
PIPE BOLLARDS (TYP.)

INSULATED CLERESTORY GLASS
IN THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

CONC. STAIRS W/
GALVANIZED HANDRAILS

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)T.O.CONC.

3/8"x18"x36" GALV. STEEL BENT  PLATE
D.S. PROTECTION (TYP. - REF. WALL
SECTIONS)

F.F.E.

DOCK EQUIP: 45,OOO# MECHANICAL PIT
LEVELERS, DOCK BUMPERS, DOCK SEALS,
AND WHEEL CHOCKS (TYP. U.N.O.)

MANUAL PREFIN. INSUL. STL.
SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOCK
DOORS (TYP.)

PREFIN. INSUL. STL. SECTIONAL
OVERHEAD DRIVE-IN DOORS W/
OPERATORS (TYP.)

GALVANIZED STEEL STAIRS,
GUARDRAILS AND HANDRAILS (TYP.)

PIPE ALL DOWNSPOUTS BELOW
GRADE PER CIVIL DWGS. (TYP.)

BLOCK-OUT REINFORCING FOR FUTURE
OVERHEAD DOCK DOOR (9'x10' TYP.)

46
'-0

"

L.P.

P.J.P.J.P.J.

L.P.L.P.

INSULATED GLASS IN THERMALLY BROKEN
CLEAR ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)

INSULATED GLASS IN THERMALLY BROKEN
CLEAR ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

T.O.CONC.

52'-0"52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 37'-0" 15'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"
1 192 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

P.J.P.J. P.J.

L.P.P.J.

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED
TO MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

Tenant SignageTenant Signage

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

TW
E

E
N

 G
R

ID
S

 B
 &

 H
)

5'-0" 60'-0" 5'-0"

46
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

50'-0"50'-0"50'-0"50'-0"50'-0"50'-0"60'-0"

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

TW
E

E
N

 G
R

ID
S

 B
 &

 H
)

46
'-0

"

47
'-0

"

45
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

50'-0" 50'-0"

L.P.

P.J.

T.O.CONC.

F.F.E.

L.P.

P.J. P.J.
P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. L.P.

P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.
L.P. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

P.J. P.J. P.J.

L.P. L.P.

T.O.CONC.

F.F.E.

K AJ I H G F E D C B

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

TW
E

E
N

 G
R

ID
S

 B
 &

 H
)

5'-0"60'-0"5'-0"

Tenant Signage

46
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

P.J. P.J. P.J.

L.P.L.P.

P.J.

T.O.CONC.

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

GALV., INSULATED HOLLOW MTL.
DOORS AND FRAMES PAINTED
TO MATCH BUILDING (TYP.)

KYNAR COATED MTL.
COPING (TYP.)

SITE-CAST CONC. WALL PANELS
FINISHED W/ CEMENT-BASED ACRYLIC
COATING AND MEDIUM TEXTURE (TYP.)

L.P.

L.P.L.P.

INSULATED GLASS IN
THERMALLY BROKEN CLEAR
ANOD. ALUM. FRAMES (TYP.)

Tenant Signage

50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 50'-0" 60'-0"

36
'-0

" M
IN

. C
LE

A
R

(B
E

TW
E

E
N

 G
R

ID
S

 B
 &

 H
)

46
'-0

"

T.O.CONC.

47
'-0

"

45
'-0

"

43
'-6

"

50'-0"50'-0"

P.J. P.J. P.J.
P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. L.P.

P.J. P.J.P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

F.F.E. F.F.E.

KA JIHGFEDCB

A1.24
OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1/32" = 1'-0"

OVERALL WEST ELEVATION3

Scale: 1:40

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN2 N

Scale: 1/32" = 1'-0"

OVERALL EAST ELEVATION1

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER BELOW

SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER BELOW

SLAB

Scale: 1/32" = 1'-0"

OVERALL NORTH ELEVATION4 Scale: 1/32" = 1'-0"

OVERALL SOUTH ELEVATION5

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER BELOW

SLAB

10 MIL VAPOR
BARRIER BELOW

SLAB

DescriptionDateNo.

Issued For: Preliminary Development Plan

Date: 04.30.18

Project No. 2018-XX

Revisions:

CIVIL

LANDSCAPE

FOUNDATIONS

STRUCTURAL

PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

FIRE PROTECTION

CONTRACTOR

4825 NW 41st Street | Suite 500 | Riverside, MO 64150
816 | 888 | 7380

RENAISSANCE INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING

RENAISSANCE INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING

NorthPoint Development, LLC
Kansas Certificate of Authorization No. A-1099

XXXX   Edgerton, KS

Inland Port XXIV

Robert H. Waters III - Architect
Kansas License No. 4297

24

4.27.18



 

FS2018-05 – Revised Final Site Plan – UPS CNG Storage Tanks                                    Page 1 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
June 12, 2018 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
Re: Application FS2018-05, Amendment to Final Site Plan FS 2017-01 for Inland Port XXI - 

Logistic Park Kansas City (UPS Distribution Center) 
 
APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: Jeff Lucero 
 TruStar Energy CNG 
 10225 Philadelphia Court 
 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
 
Property Owner: ELHC XXI LLC 
  4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
  Riverside, MO  64150 
 
Requested Action: Modification and amendment to the approved 

Final Site Plan for Inland Port XXI, Logistics Park 
Kansas City Phase III, Lot 1. 

  
Legal Description: 4-15-22 BG 582' S & 30' E NW CR NE1/4 E 

223.39' ELY CUR LF 359.42' NE 673.75' SE 67.98' 
SLY CUR RT 149.64' S 378.42' SLY CUR LF 
595.20' SLY CUR RT 578.22' S 634.88' W 1531.88' 
N2072.96' TO POB EX 6.22 AC & EX .104 AC 
64.151 ACS M/Lin the City of Edgerton, Johnson 
County, Kansas. 

 
Site Address/Location: 19400 Essex Street, approximately 64 acres 

located along the south side of 199th Street and 
the west side of Essex Street. 

 
Existing Zoning and Land Uses: Zoned L-P (Logistics Park District) – IP XXI – UPS 

Distribution Center. 
 
Existing Improvements: UPS Facility  
 
Site Size:  Approximately 64 Acres.   
 
 
 



FS2018-05 – Revised Final Site Plan – UPS CNG Storage Tanks                                                   Page 2 
 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The applicant is seeking to modify the approved final site plan (FS 2017-01) to accommodate 
the construction of a Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) fueling facility. The approved Final Site 
Plan met requirements outlined under L-P, Logistic Park District zoning requirements, and 
approved preliminary and final plats. The CNG facility consists primarily of 15 dual hose, time-
fill stations (30 stations) and 3 (three) fast-fill stations and accompanying appurtenances.   
   
The modified Final Site Plan sheet set includes general information about the development 
including items such as general layout, landscape plan, equipment layout and photometric. 
The information and details submitted as part of this modified Final Site Plan are for only the 
specified area and associated activity and shall create an enforceable obligation to building 
and develop in accordance with all specifications and notations contained in the site plan 
instrument. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Staff has reviewed the Final Site Plan submittal for compliance with Article 10, Site Plans and 
Design Standards. It has also been reviewed for compliance with Article 5.2, Logistics Park 
District and Article 12, Sign Regulations. The combined details of that review are listed below. 
Article 10.1.D -- Contents of Site Plans 

1. Front or cover sheet (Sheet S-1). 
a) A scale vicinity map showing the relationship of the site to surrounding 

neighborhoods, roads and other physical features. Vicinity map should be scaled 
smaller. I-35 is incorrectly labeled as 56-Highway. Update Amended Final Site 
P lan. 

b) A project title, zoning designation and project sponsor. A street, lot or tract address 
of the project. Change title to, Amended Final Site Plan - UPS Edgerton CNG 
Fueling Facility. Update Amended Final Site P lan. 

c) An index to contents, and a data table which, at a minimum, includes: Acreage of 
the site and number of units per acre (if applicable); gross square feet of the 
building(s) area; the proposed use of each building; number of employees and the 
BOCA or Uniform Building Code or NEPA 101 Life Safety Code Occupancy Design 
Load and, the total number of parking places. Sheet lists 2016 International Codes, 
City has adopted 2006 IBC and 2005 NEC. Update Amended Final Site P lan. 

d) The specified certificates and signature blocks. Note and certificate on General-Title 
Sheet needs area for the affixation of signatures and titles. Update Amended 
Final Site P lan. 

 
2. Landscape plan and table (Sheet S-3) 

a) A landscape plan drawn to scale, showing the site, building location, planting and 
seeding schedules, refuse and outdoor storage screening and boundary screening. 
All landscape features shall be shown in relation to sidewalks, paths, lawns, parking 
areas and drives. Indicate existing and proposed landscaping on sheet. Update 
Landscape Plan. 

b) A table entitled "Planting Schedule" which lists the common name, size and 
condition of all planting materials, together with a timetable for planting. Add a 
planting table for proposed landscaping. Update Landscape Plan. 

3. Site map (Sheets C02 thru C18) 



FS2018-05 – Revised Final Site Plan – UPS CNG Storage Tanks                                                   Page 3 
 

a) A site map with the following features. 
i) Exterior lot lines with any survey pins. Add required information. Reconcile lot 

line topology.  Update Amended Final Site P lan. 
ii) Parking areas, paths, walks with sizes and surfaces material specifications. 

Identify the internal pedestrian system and connection with the existing site. 
Surfacing for the fueling station must be concrete and curb and gutter must be 
included. Update Amended Final Site P lan.  

b) A sketch of the entry sign, and all other free-standing, façade, and building signs to 
be used on the premises. Site signage and its location is not currently shown. 
Approval of site signage is granted under a separate approval process 
and proposed signage w ill be evaluated upon receipt of a signage 
application.  

 
Section 5.2 Logistics Park (L-P) District regulations 
DESIGN GUIDELINES:   
1. The City may require that loading and service areas are screened from public view with 

landscaping, berming, facade walls, or fencing. A landscape buffer is required along the 
perimeter of the CNG Fueling facility addition to create visual screening. Update 
Amended Final Site P lan. 

2. Pedestrian access within a development and adjacent public and private property shall be 
considered as a component to the design of an employment center. Identify the 
pedestrian access routes between the time-fill area #1 and fast- fill area #2 and the larger 
site. Update Amended Final Site P lan.  
 

OFF-STREET LOADING STANDARDS 
1. Temporary Outdoor Storage Regulations for Cargo Containers, Operational Trailers, and 

Tractors.  The L-P District requires that outdoor parking or storage spaces for cargo 
containers, operational trailers and tractors must be screened from view by either a 
masonry wall of a type and style complementary to the primary materials of the building, 
wrought iron, decorative metal, living plant material or a combination of these.  The height 
of the screening must be sufficient to block view of the equipment or vehicles from a 
public right-of-way.  Where a masonry wall is used to satisfy this requirement, foundation 
planting must be provided on the exterior face of the wall.  These spaces must be clearly 
demarcated solely for tractor and trailer storage. As indicated above, the fueling station 
must be screened by landscaping. Update Amended Final Site P lan. 

 
PHOTOMETRICS: 
1. General. All lighting shall be designed in accordance with applicable Illuminating 

Engineering Society of North America (IESNA) practices as applied to specified applications 
within the L-P District.  Cut-off design is specified within the development. The submitted 
photometric plan does not show the lighting levels at property lines. Update Amended 
Final Site P lan. 

 
DIESEL EMISSION REQUIREMENTS: 
The following diesel emission requirements shall apply: 
1. Except for loading and unloading operations, heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross 

vehicle weight of over 14,001 pounds shall be restricted from idling on-site for no more 



FS2018-05 – Revised Final Site Plan – UPS CNG Storage Tanks                                                   Page 4 
 

than 5 minutes in any 60-minute period.  For loading and unloading operations, idling shall 
be restricted to no more than 30 minutes in any 60-minute period. 

2. One electrical hook-up shall be provided for “trucker plug-ins” equal to a minimum of one-
third (1/3) of the total number of truck bays at the facility to eliminate excessive idling by 
heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 pounds. Approval to 
use alternative technologies to eliminate excessive idling may be requested, but shall not 
be approved unless the applicant demonstrates that they are at least as effective as 
electrical hook-ups. Hook-ups must be indicated on site plan. 

3. Signs shall be posted by owner(s) of the facility at each vehicle entrance to the facility 
notifying drivers of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 14,001 
pounds to turn off engines when not in use. 

4. The operation and idling of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of over 
14,001 pounds, including circulation, shall be restricted within 300 feet of any property 
zoned for or committed to residential use, or the owner/developer shall provide alternative 
measures including the possible installation of a wall or other mitigating measures to 
assure buffering of residences from heavy-duty truck operations, unless the owners of 
property located adjacent to said heavy duty diesel truck operations consent and agree, in 
writing to:  

a. Allow the location of heavy-duty diesel truck operations within 300 feet of their 
property zoned for and committed to residential use, and  

b. Restrict areas of their property located within 300 feet of adjacent trucking 
operations to only non-residential uses; 

5. Warehouse managers and employees shall be trained by the employer(s) or operator(s) of 
the facility to use efficient scheduling and load management to eliminate unnecessary 
operation, queuing, or idling of heavy duty diesel vehicles with a gross vehicle weight of 
over 14,001 pounds. 

6. Warehouse managers and employees shall be provided by the employer(s) or operator(s) 
of the facility with information about the possible effects of diesel emissions on their own 
health and the importance of being a good neighbor by minimizing idling and avoiding 
other potentially adverse impacts on adjacent or nearby residences; 

7. On-site services shall be made available to vehicle drivers to reduce idling.  These services 
may include restroom facilities, seating for drivers waiting for their cargo to be loaded or 
unloaded, and/or food/beverage vending machines. 

8. Any motorized equipment used within the proposed development should utilize clean 
technology propulsion and/or alternative fuels such as biodiesel, electricity, or propane; 

9. If fuel dispensing facilities are provided on-site, alternative clean fuels such as (but not 
limited to) bio-diesel blended fuel should be provided at these dispensing facilities. 

 
General Comments 
1. Various scales utilized on the sheets, select uniform scale. 
2. Sheet S-2 Site Plan. Take information shown in blowup and place it on another sheet titled 

Sheet S-2a. to indicate the actual project area. 
3. On newly created Sheet S-2a update as follows: 

a. Move gas utility meter set assembly as it is within a required set back; 
b. Label setback line; 
c. Indicate scale; 
d. Show existing and proposed landscaping; 
e. Identify fence type as done on Sheet S-1 under project description; 



FS2018-05 – Revised Final Site Plan – UPS CNG Storage Tanks  Page 5 

f. Address stormwater runoff;
g. Identify circulation patterns, internal and external;
h. Indicate parking stall dimensions;
i. Address future tractor staging area;

4. Sheets C-1, C-2 and C-3 reference Sheet C-2.1. Sheet C-2.1 was not submitted.
5. SWPPP has not been submitted.

RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends approval of FS2018-05 for the Final Site Plan, subject to the 
following stipulations. 

1. The aforementioned recommendations are stipulated to as a part of this approval and
incorporated into the Final Site Plan document set.

2. All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met.
3. All construction plans for any public infrastructure shall be prepared to City standards and

approved by the City.
4. No signage is proposed with this application. Signage proposed later shall receive separate

approval according to the provisions of the UDC.
5. A construction/building permit document set must be submitted and approved prior to

commencement of any construction activities.
6. Applicant/Owner Obligation. The site plan, a scale map of proposed buildings, structures,

parking areas, easements, roads and other city requirements (landscaping/berm plan,
lighting plan) used in physical development, when approved by the City Council shall create
an enforceable obligation to build and develop in accordance with all specifications and
notations contained in the site plan instrument. The applicant prior to the issuance of any
development permit shall sign all site plans. A final site plan filed for record shall indicate
that the applicant shall perform all obligations and requirements contained therein.

ATTACHMENTS 
- Final Site Plan Application No. FS2018-05
- Amended Final Site Plan











 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666

UPS EDGERTON

CNG FUELING FACILITY

19400 ESSEX
EDGERTON, KS



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666



 1
94

00
 E

SS
EX

 S
TR

EE
T

U
PS

 E
D

G
ER

TO
N

ED
G

ER
TO

N
, K

S 
66

02
1

C
N

G
 F

U
EL

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y

26882 CALLE HERMOSA UNIT 3
CAPISTRANO BEACH, CA 92624

CA PE LICENSE # 68666


	EDGERTON PLANNING COMMISSION
	REGULAR SESSION
	Edgerton City Hall
	June 12, 2018
	7:00 P.M.
	Minutes - May 8, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting
	TCU 2018-04 - IP XXXI temporary sanitary facilties
	TCU 2018-04 - Application
	TCU 2018-04 - Site Plan
	TCU 2018-04 - Owner's Permission

	TCU 2018-05 - IP XL - temporary gravel lot parking
	TCU 2018-05 - IP XL - Application
	TCU 2018-05 - IP XL - Site Plan
	TCU 20018-05 - IP XL - Owner's Permission

	PP 2018-04 - LPKC Southwest - 199th Street and Four Corners Road
	PP 2018-04 - Application
	PP 2018-04 - Preliminary Plat

	PS 2018-03 - LPKC Southwest - 199th Street and Four Corners Road
	PS 2018-03 - LPKC Southwest - Application
	PS 2018-03 - LPKC Southwest - Preliminary Site Plan

	FS2018-05 - UPS CNG Addition
	FS 2018-05 - UPS CNG Application
	FS 2018-05 UPS CNG Site Plan




